Public Document Pack po b
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr  o° :

Bridgend County Borough Council

—
Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont, CF31 4WB / Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB BRIDGEND

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief

Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich Executive’s Directorate
dewis iaith. Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 /
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 643694 / 643513
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. Gofynnwch am / Ask for: Democratic Services

Ein cyf/ Our ref:
Eich cyf / Your ref:

CppAD

Dyddiad/Date: Wednesday, 24 April 2024

Dear Councillor,

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE A

A meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee A will be held as a Hybrid Meeting in the Council
Chamber - Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB / remotely via Microsoft Teams on
Tuesday, 30 April 2024 at 10:00.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence
To receive apologies for absence from Members.

2. Declarations of Interest
To receive declarations of personal and prejudicial interest (if any) from Members/Officers in
accordance with the provisions of the Members Code of Conduct adopted by Council from 1
September 2008.

3. Approval of Minutes 3-26
To receive for approval the Minutes of the Licensing Act 2003 SC A meetings of
05/10/23 and 03/01/24.

4, Grant Of Private Hire Vehicle Licences 27 -30

5. Urgent Iltems
To consider any other item(s) of business in respect of which notice has been given in

accordance with Rule 4 of the Council Procedure Rules and which the person presiding at
the meeting is of the opinion should by reason of special circumstances be transacted at the
meeting as a matter of urgency.

6. Exclusion of the Public
The reports relating to the following items are not for publication as they
contain exempt information as defined in Paragraph 12 of Part 4 and/or Paragraph 21 of
Part 5 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local
Government (Access to Information)(Variation)(Wales) Order 2007.

By receiving this Agenda Pack electronically you will save the Authority approx. £0.72 in
printing costs



If following the application of the public interest test the Committee resolves pursuant to the
Act to consider these items in private, the public will be excluded from the meeting during
such consideration.

7. Grant of a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver's Licence 31-36

Note: This will be a Hybrid meeting and Members and Officers will be attending in the Council
Chamber, Civic Offices, Angel Street Bridgend. The meeting will be recorded for subsequent
transmission via the Council’s internet site which will be available as soon as practicable after the
meeting. If you have any queries regarding this, please contact
cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk or tel. 01656 643148 / 643694 / 643513 / 643696

Yours faithfully

K Watson
Chief Officer, Legal and Regulatory Services, HR and Corporate Policy

Councillors: Councillors Councillors
A R Berrow MJ Kearn J E Pratt
S J Bletsoe M Lewis

RJ Collins J Llewellyn-Hopkins



Agenda Iltem 3

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2023

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) HELD
HYBRID IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER - CIVIC OFFICES, ANGEL STREET, BRIDGEND,
CF31 4WB ON THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2023 AT 12:30

Present

Councillor M Lewis — Chairperson

MJ Kearn J Llewellyn-Hopkins

Officers:

Julie Ellams Democratic Services Officer - Committees
Stephen Griffiths Democratic Services Officer - Committees
Andrea Lee Senior Lawyer

Michael Pitman Technical Support Officer — Democratic Services
Yvonne Witchell Team Manager Licensing

8. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None

9. LICENSING ACT 2003 SECTION 51: APPLICATION TO REVIEW PREMISES
LICENCE, EDEN, 33 MARKET STREET BRIDGEND, CF31 1LJ

The Team Manager, Licensing presented a report to determine an application received
from South Wales Police to review the premises licence for the premises known as Eden
33 Market St, Bridgend. An agenda and a bundle of papers had been circulated prior to
the meeting. South Wales Police were the responsible authority for the purposes of the
application. The premises licence LP740 was jointly held by Zahid and Saima Rasul and
a copy was attached at appendix B to the papers. Saima Rasul was the Designated
Premises Supervisor.

The Team Manager Licensing confirmed with both parties that they had received the
additional information submitted by both parties. South Wales Police had submitted a
bundle numbered ASD1 to ASD15. Mr Phipps, the representative for the Premises
Licence Holder, had submitted CCTV images, a plan and a plan showing the location of
the CCTV cameras. She asked if either party proposed to introduce any additional
written material at the meeting and they both replied that they did not.

The Team Manager explained that the application had been given public notice and no
other representations were received. The steps they could take were outlined within the
report along with the relevant sections of the Licensing Policy and the Home Office
Statutory Guidance.

The Legal Officer explained that Members had read the papers and asked the Licensing
Officer for South Wales Police (SWP) to bring out any salient points that needed to be
highlighted.

The Licensing Officer, SWP explained that initial representations in the form of the
application to review the premises license were contained in the bundle. Supporting
information in the form of warning letter, emails and NICE Investigate information were
on pages 19 to 30. In addition to the original supporting information on pages 19 to 30,
there was further additional supporting documentation in the form of statements, emails
and other documentation which was forwarded to licensing on Wednesday 4th October
2023. She explained that the police had an obligation and duty to prevent crime and

Page 3



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2023

disorder and to keep the King’'s peace. The number one priority for SWP was to reduce
and prevent crime and disorder and antisocial behaviour and to keep the communities of
South Wales safe. The whole ethos of the Licensing Act was built around the four
licensing objectives, the prevention of crime and disorder, the protection of children from
harm, public safety and the prevention of public nuisance. The promotion of these
licensing objectives was a paramount consideration at all times. Although the local
authority and police licensing were always a source of advice and support in
understanding all legislation, it was ultimately the business operator’s, responsibility to
ensure that steps were put in place to comply with the law and to ensure licensing
conditions were adhered to. In this case the responsibility lay with the Premises Licence
Holders, Mr Zahid Rasul and Mrs Saima Rasul. Mrs Rasul was also the Designated
Premises Supervisor (DPS).

SWP had brought the Premises Licence for Eden, 33 Market Street Bridgend to review
due to the persistent breaches of the CCTV conditions. The Licensing Officer, SWP
read the CCTV conditions of the premises licence to Members, as contained within the
report under “grounds for review”.

The Licensing Officer, SWP had been privy to information relating specifically to Eden,
Market Street, Bridgend and three separate incidents. This information had been
provided through public information, public reporting and police officer evidence. The
Licensing Officer read to the panel, the details of each incident, the log updates and the
attempts to obtain the CCTV footage, as contained within the report.

With regard to the first occurrence, the investigation was still ongoing but delays in
obtaining crucial evidence such as CCTV had a detrimental effect on the case and those
involved. The second occurrence related to a potential serious sexual assault, with a
male currently on bail whilst the incident was investigated. CCTV was finally provided
on Friday 28th July 2023, some 4 weeks after the first request on 4th July 2023,
however, the quality was poor. CCTV was requested from Mr and Mrs Rasul numerous
times, before eventually being provided. The third occurrence was one of criminal
damage and was reported by Mr Rasul.

The Licensing Officer, SWP explained that the failure to provide CCTV was a significant
and worrying breach of the Premises Licence. This failure had shown a complete and
utter disregard to the prevention and detection of crime and the Criminal Justice System
in its entirety. It also impacted the time wasted by officers trying to obtain CCTV to
investigate reports. This had a significant cost implication on the public purse and
officers were unable to utilise their precious resources on other matters. It was of serious
note that these breaches were not the first instances of breaches by the licence holders.

Mr and Mrs Rasul had received a number of emails requesting they comply with their
CCTV conditions and had also received a warning letter from the CSP Inspector
(Appendix Al) which was contained in the original bundle, dated 16th February 2023
and hand delivered to Mr and Mrs Rasul on 17th February 2023. It seemed that they
were reluctant to assist SWP with investigations, including when they had reported
incidents and were themselves potentially victims of crime.

The Licensing Officer, SWP explained that the premises licence already had such a
strong and robust CCTV condition so it was impossible to add anything further that
would ensure Mr and Mrs Rasul provided CCTV. The concerning element of this review
was that the incidents of failure to provide CCTV or provide in a timely manner were
following Mr and Mrs Rasul receiving the warning letter from the CSP Inspector. The
warning letter was received due to the same failing to provide CCTV of an incident
involving Mrs Rasul. The Licensing Officer, SWP explained that the incident was one of
criminal damage and racial abuse. Details of the incident were included in the additional

Page 4



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2023

documentation provided (ASD 9) and in an email trail (ASD10) (dated 13/01/2023) and
were read to the panel. Mr Rasul stated he had CCTV, and stated he would release it on
Facebook but failed to provide the footage to South Wales Police, even after numerous
requests, until it was finally received by SWP in April 2023.

The Licensing Officer, SWP explained that this was another example of breach of CCTV
where officers had continually requested CCTV, wasting officers time and seemingly
putting barriers in the way of investigations. She referred to ASD 13 in the Additional
Supporting Documentation which detailed further incidents surrounding CCTV breaches.
From the details it could be seen that there were blatant breaches in not providing
CCTV, an incident where CCTV was not fully operational and an incident where a
member of the public had been shown footage.

The Licensing Officer, SWP referred to one last incident which was contained in
Additional Supporting Documentation ASD13, where it showed the lack of cooperation in
providing CCTV could result in a perpetrator not being identified and the case closed.
She added that there was an error on the dates on this occurrence and that the year
was 2022 not 2023. She read details of the incident to the panel.

The Licensing Officer, SWP explained that there had been stages of inconsistent
compliance during short periods. This brought the behaviour of the licensee into further
investigation from a departmental stance, as it was clear that they were able to identify
their shortcomings but unable to remain compliant and adhere to the noted conditions.
CCTV was the beating heart of the identification tools utilised by the Criminal Justice
System. Not only was it used in detecting crime or identifying offenders, but also in
protecting those wrongly accused and providing police with the impartiality of their
investigation. In explanation to the process of obtaining CCTV, requests for CCTV were
made via NICE Investigate which was a link sent to an email. There was no requirement
for premises to purchase discs or USB sticks, however premises could provide CCTV by
downloading on to disc or USB should they wish to.

The Licensing Officer, SWP stated that it was the viewpoint of the department that there
was no excuse for the failure to provide CCTV. Not providing CCTV as per condition of
licence was detrimental to the investigating of crimes, some of which were of an
extremely serious nature. It also played a part in allowing perpetrators to go
unidentified. It was evident that Mr and Mrs Rasul had little or no regard for the safety of
their patrons or the apprehension of offenders, there was also no regard for the laws
surrounding the Licensing Act 2003 or conditions of their premises licence. SWP had no
alternative but to request the revocation of the licence.

A panel member asked if the Licensing Officer, SWP thought that the lack of CCTV
would affect the outcome of the cases they were investigating. She replied that you
could not argue with something on CCTV. It identified subjects but also protected those
that had been wrongly accused. Sgt Daniel Parry added that as police officers, they
were impartial investigators and the role that CCTV played in impartiality was so
impactive. He could not emphasise that enough in this hearing.

A panel member asked if they felt that a lot of time and resources had been wasted in
the time spent chasing the CCTV footage. The Licensing Officer, SWP replied that as in
her representations, there was a huge amount of officer time wasted, continually trying
to obtain the CCTV. It was not just officers on the ground, it was Sergeants and
Inspectors and had a huge detrimental effect on the public purse.

Sgt Myfanwy Beaumont added that it was not only impacting victims of crime, but also

individuals that they had on bail for offences which they may or may not have
committed. With regard to not complying with this CCTV condition, there was a much

Page 5



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2023

wider ripple effect which did not impact just one or two people. Some of these crimes
were fairly straightforward in their nature. They shouldn't be taking months, simply
because officers could not get their hands on very straightforward pieces of evidence.

There were no further questions. Mr Matthew Phipps, the solicitors acting on behalf of
Mr and Mrs Rasul asked for a 2-minute break.

The Hearing reconvened at 13:30.

Mr Matthew Phipps, TLT solicitors introduced himself and stated that he was acting for
and on behalf of Mr and Mrs Rasul, who were there with him.

Mr Phipps explained that Mr and Mrs Rasul had had the premises since 2015. It was a
well-known night club venue in Bridgend.

They had a neighbouring business called Bar 35 in immediate proximity to the premises.
They employed 4 door staff. Mr Rasul was almost always at the premises and Mrs Rasul
was also there regularly. They employed 3,4, 5 or six door staff depending on the risk
assessment and 2-disc jockeys. Predominantly the premises opened for customers at
about 10:00pm on Friday, Saturday, and Bank Holiday Sunday, trading as per the hours
of operation for licenced activities. Generally, customers came after midnight and in
terms of operating numbers, they were looking at about 150 people on Friday and up to
around 200 on Saturday.

Mr Phipps referred Members to page 3 of the agenda where it stated that no other
representations had been received by any responsible authorities, residents, councillors
or the authority themselves. The case was fairly summarised at paragraph 3.3 as a
failure to provide CCTYV as per police requests. There were a number of times when they
had not in any way delivered to the standard expected. They needed improve their
position around the CCTV provision. It was important to say that from the outset. In the
majority of cases, the failure to provide CCTV was more failure to provide CCTV as
quickly as it should have been, not a failure to provide it at all. Appendix A of the report
referred to predominantly 3 incidents of issue and concern that the police had taken
some time to articulate, one about criminal damage, one about the concern about the
conduct of some Asian males in the premises and one about a sexual assault away from
the premises, but investigations suggested that the individuals had been together at the
premises.

Mr Phipps referred to the incident of the 1st of July, set out on page 10 of the report.
CCTV was slow to be provided but it was also right to highlight that on the 21st of July,
officers had attended the premises, viewed the CCTV and reported back in connection
with that. They had attended with Mr Rasul, who they visited and spoke with. The failure
to provide the CCTV was unfortunate, but the CCTV provision was not straightforward.
Within the papers, Mr and Mrs Rasul mentioned Nice links falling off and on page 30 of
the report, there was detail of the Nice links that had been provided. A link effectively
lasted for a couple of days and had to be provided in that window. He entirely accepted
the reference to that period being extended upon request in connection with one of the
events. The premises were closed Sunday, Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday,
S0 requests, phone calls, attendance on many of those days would achieve nothing.
This was not his clients obstructing or wanting to be awkward about the provision of
CCTV.

Mr Phipps referred to a second incident about the concern about Asian males in
attendance. This was raised with the Licensing Officers at the Pub Watch meeting on
the 10th of May. They explained that they had had some concerns about their conduct,
not criminal activity but concerns about their conduct. They also advised that they had
viewed the CCTV and there was little to report on the CCTV but that they had quite

Page 6



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2023

properly raised with them their concerns. There was reference to Nice links expiring and
so forth but the CCTV was uploaded, albeit later deemed to be insufficient.

The text at the top of the police application was internal text to the police.

This issue, as far as they were concerned, was something that they raised in good faith
with the officers and it was right that they did not turn the request for CCTV around, but
they had viewed it and had taken the view that there was not much in it. It was not their
understanding that this was the investigation of any crime, because they had raised it.
Page 13 of the report shows that the request was for footage from all cameras between
2:00am and 4:00am. He referred Members to the plan and the CCTV shapshot image
that had been provided within the additional papers, effectively given a snapshot of each
camera. There were other attachments and a map plan of all the CCTV cameras and
where they were situated.

Mr Phipps referred to a third incident set out in the application, which was the criminal
damage allegation. They were the victims of that allegation and CCTV was provided,
albeit slowly and late, and despite a number of requests. On this occasion when the
incident happened, they called the police. They detained the individual. The officers did
not use their body, worn video themselves, and they thought he was clearly identified as
being the perpetrator. They had understood on the night in question that he had
accepted what he had done. Officers visited in the interim period, they had a
conversation with officers and explained that the person had been detained on the night.
Their understanding was that that was sufficient. There had earlier been a suggestion
that there was a concern about one of the individuals who was a witness, later being
employed by them. He could not see what was wrong with that. They obviously
employed from the local community and people took jobs with them who knew the
premises. They did not want to engage or pursue this, and they should have told the
police earlier that they did not want to pursue this. It was directed toward the premises
and ultimately Mr and Mrs Rasul, not to be used as part of the application seeking
revocation of the licence, particularly when CCTV had been provided, albeit late.

Mr Phipps explained that the application on page 17 of the report referenced the refusal
of two temporary event notices, one for December 2021 and one for the 28th of March
2023. They did not believe that this related to these premises but to number 35, their
other premises. He could not understand why that had been included in the papers. With
regard to the additional material that was served the previous afternoon, he questioned
the legitimacy of that material and the degree of reliance that they could put on that
additional material, which had typo errors about the year in which the event occurred. In
terms of the warning letter, they recognised that they had not been getting the issue
right. The CCTV provided in connection with this was actually provided before the letter
was signed off, although they accepted that it was later provided again. There was a
failure to attend Pub Watch for a period but since February that had been attended to.
The warning letter was fairly setting out some concerns. There was a failure to ensure
that they were as up to date with the people who were excluded on the banned list within
the Bridgend Pub Watch. Photographs had since been provided and effectively
displayed by the door so that staff could be aware of who was to be banned. GDPR
intervened and now there was an app and materials provided. He accepted that they
staff had not been good at this in the past. They had now improved and were in good
order since the warning letter.

Mr Phipps referred to the CCTV condition on page 35 of the report which was the focus
of police attention. The condition says that they need to be capable to download CCTV
recordings in a recordable format, either to disc or USB. There was no reference to the
NICE reporting protocol. If it was being suggested that the condition was being
breached, then officers/ solicitors should reconsider that condition. It should also be
upon lawful demand for investigation of a crime. He asked the panel to reflect on this,
particularly in respect of the second of the incidents where there were concerns about

Page 7



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2023

the conduct of the Asian males and whether they were acting appropriately. With regard
to the other conditions which governed the licensing objectives, CCTV apart, there was
nothing in the evidence to suggest that any of those conditions were being breached,
undermined or not satisfied or complied with.

Mr Phipps explained that on 22nd June, two Licensing Officers inspected the premises.
They requested that some notices were replaced and apart for that the premises was
given a completely clean bill. In terms of the CCTV request, this application was made
nine weeks ago and there had not been any suggestion that there had been a failure to
comply with CCTV requests in that intervening period. There had not been any requests
for CCTV in that nine-week period and this reflected how the premises was operating.
He added that they had had requests for CCTV on the 22nd of January, delivered 28th
of January, 31st of March delivered 5th of April, 23rd of April delivered 5th of May, 30th
of April delivered 9th of May, 18th of June delivered 10th of July, 15th of July delivered
on the same day, so they were able to deliver. Receiving a review made them take stock
and consider whether they were doing everything that they should be doing. The
premises merited a review, having had warnings and failed. Having reflected on their
ability to deliver, they had introduced a number of improvements. The CCTV system had
been serviced, overhauled and the plans provided both the images and the position of
the 19 cameras showing this was a comprehensive system. There had been training for
members of the team, Mr and Mrs Rasul, their two sons and their daughter. One of the
issues they faced was that if people were away, then it was not attended to because not
enough people could access the system and provide the material. How to upload to the
link system had also been a feature of discussions although they had not had the
chance to put that in practice in the last couple of months. Additional keys had been
provided for everyone so that access to the premises could be gained at any time by any
of them. They believed it was a good system fit for purpose.

Mr Phipps stated that in terms of the additional materials that had been provided the
previous afternoon by the police, whilst perfectly legal it was a slight irony that materials
were being provided nine weeks after the review application was made, the afternoon
before the licensing hearing. ASD15 appeared to stray into new areas that had not been
incorporated within the application itself. It appeared to be a list of incidents and issues
at the premises through the course of 2023. This was a summary document produced
by the police without any CAD or NICE reports being provided. Only seven of these
incidents referred to Eden and he provided the dates, 24 September, 9th September,
15th July, 29th April, 1st April, 26th February, 22nd January. It was unclear whether
these actually related to Eden as Eden was the calling point in that part of town when
reporting or recording an issue. He questioned the degree to which the late material
could be relied upon when making their decision. A number of the incidents

portrayed the premises in a responsible, transparent manner promoting the licensing
objectives. There were a number of incidents where drugs had been detected on the
door. The person had been detained, the police had been called, the individual had been
dealt with as on 24th of September where the police were involved and they were
engaged. That showed they had nothing to hide. They were engaging with the officers
as per all good Pub Watch protocol. This document painted the premises in a very
different picture to the position that they had heard that morning. He asked if it was a fair
conclusion that the premises was hopeless and undermining the licensing objectives.
They had a particular area where they needed to improve but were not in a position that
could be described as the end of the road to merit revocation of a licence and ASD 15
was the best evidence of that.

Mr Phipps added that there was reference to some of the failings in the papers provided
the afternoon before. Some of this was in 2022, a year ago. CCTV was being dropped
in, uploaded, received and so forth. The other point to make about the period since the
review was that the premises would have been monitored closely, both during the

Page 8



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2023

consultation period and the time since the review consultation period closed. There was
no evidence that they had continued to fail. There was nothing to suggest that the
premises was anything other than in good order. The national guidance stated that co-
operation at a local level in promoting the licensing objectives should be encouraged
and reviewed, not be used to undermine this cooperation. The use of AD15 as a means
of suggesting the premises was not in good order, this issue aside, was unfair. He was
unaware of any reference to revocation before the start of the hearing that day.
Revocation meant that there was nothing about the operation of the premises that could
be remedied. That included consequences such as the loss of jobs, loss of
entertainment venue, closure of the business, etc. Reviews were not about punishment,
and they were not in court being prosecuted. It would be difficult to see how they could
be prosecuted because the condition was not as tightly worded as it should be. They
recognised that valid points had been raised but what was being requested was a
punishment for previous failings. They were there to find resolution to help promote the
licensing objectives at this premises and sorting the CCTV was the obvious point.
Licences were respectfully not revoked for that. They were revoked for the most
egregious failings, where there was very significant consequence, not late or modest
delivery of CCTV.

A panel member asked if it was appropriate that the police had to wait almost up to a
week for evidence, particularly if a serious crime had been committed on a Saturday,
because the premises were shut on Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday. Mr
Phipps replied that it was not appropriate and that he was providing an explanation why
the premises was shut.

The panel member asked if they had addressed the delay in giving the CCTV to the
police when requested? Mr Phipps replied it was a slight irony that they had not had any
CCTYV requested in the last nine weeks. They were prepared that if CCTV was
requested, they needed to demonstrate that they could deliver to the standard required.
In terms of the additional training, the servicing of the system, the repositioning of the
camera to make sure that the whole of the premises was in order, the additional keys to
assist lock up, the training on the USB stick, the dialogue and discussion they had had
about the NICE upload, they had not been able to do it in practice because they had not
had a request.

The Chairperson asked why some CCTV was submitted straight away but others were
taking weeks and asked why it was not standard practice? Mr Phipps replied it should
be but sometimes, because of working patterns or holidays, the size or the volume of the
CCTV that had been requested, whether it was 19 cameras for two hours or whether it
was a clip to show someone attending or not attending the premises, the fundamental
point was that they had to be able to do it consistently time after time.

Mr Rasul added that that was totally correct. They had done it time after time but on this
occasion, they had taken their eye off the ball. They had now put their house in order.
Unfortunately, in the last nine weeks, they had not had a chance to prove it. They had
been there since 2015 and it was only now that they had got it wrong. They had never
been in that situation and would not get it wrong again.

The Licensing Officer, SWP raised a few observations. They had been at this stage
before after the warning letter in February 2023. Mr and Mrs Rasul complied up until
May and now they were back in the same position again. As in her report, these
breaches had been going on and on. Her report only went back to January 2022, but
you could see consistently from January last year, they had had the same issues. With
regard to the NICE link, the date of expiry was put in by officers. It could last a week or 2
as the officer could insert the date. Officers knew the premises were shut in the week

Page 9



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2023

and quite often they would extend the last link that was sent. It was easy to extend and
could be done via a phone call.

The Licensing Officer, SWP explained that the complaint with the Asian males was
brought up in Pub Watch, but it was actually a complaint made by a member of the
public. The actual call that came in was noted on the application form. It was discussed
and Mr and Mrs Rasul also raised it. The complaint had come from some young females
attending the club. With regard to the information relating to the TENS, the information
was for number 35 however everyone knew 33 and 35 were in Eden. They were run as
one and the same and there was access back and forth through the same smoking area
into 35. All occurrences that happened were logged against Eden. If you looked at a
police report, it looked like nothing ever happened in 35 because it was known as Eden.
Number 35 had the smoking area at the back but could not be accessed through
number 33 but occurrences in the smoking area stated it was Eden. That was the
reason for including the TEN information.

The Licensing Officer, SWP explained that with regard to CCTV conditions, Mr Rasul’s
licence was from 2015. They did not have NICE Investigate in 2015 and originally CCTV
could only be provided by USB or disc. It was not feasible for the local authority to
change every licence within the County Borough of Bridgend to update their CCTV
condition to include NICE links. NICE links had been going since the beginning of last
year as evidenced in other occurrences. With regard to the late circulation of the
additional information, unfortunately due to operational reasons and short staff at the
moment, they were a licensing officer down and it had been impossible to get that
information through any quicker. It was a battle to get it in yesterday. Obviously apart
from doing this review, they still had day-to-day duties to be covered. ASD15 was there
to show they were impartial. They were not hiding anything. Those 36 occurrences were
linked to Eden. There were fifty occurrences where Eden was down as the address and
she had checked them individually to ensure they were linked, which added to the delay.
There were fourteen that were not directly linked and they had not been included. Of the
36, only four of those incidents happened before midnight. If Mr Rasul was failing to
provide CCTV, then they had concerns about the premises being open when it was
getting busy and when these occurrences were happening. This had been happening for
a long time and they had tried to work with Mr and Mrs Rasul with emails through to
warnings. They would comply for a time then it would fall back to the same old pattern.
They seemed to pick and choose which CCTV they would send and which they would
not. That was her observation as a Licensing Officer.

Mr Phipps replied that the admission that the information contained within the papers
touched on a different licensed premises, with a separate premises licence and a
separate premises licence holder was extraordinary. He expected the comment about
the TEN to be yes, sorry incorrectly included. He suggested there was a contamination
within the evidence and that a number of these incidents might have occurred at a
different licensed premises. Each application was to be determined on its individual
merits. The late evidence needed to be treated carefully, because by the officer's own
admission, they had not differentiated between this and another licensed premises
which was not before then for licensing review.

In terms of the acceptance that these conditions had been around for a while and did not
include NICE Investigate report, that did not mean that by failing to provide a NICE, you
were in breach of this if the conditions had not been changed. Premises could be invited
to undertake a minor variation and amend the condition in line with current thinking. The
minor variation procedure was set up for this purpose.

With regard to the timing of the additional information, Mr Phipps respected the point

about resources however ASD14 was dated 22nd September, ASD7 was not dated,
ASD6 was not dated and they were not in a statement format. They did not have any

Page 10



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2023

sign off and were Word documents with text. Reference was made to the witness
statements, but he did not accept them as witness statements and the witnesses were
not there. He accepted that ASD15 was produced to demonstrate the neutrality and
objectivity of the officers, but it did not explain why revocation was being requested. It
was clear from that document that the premises were working across a variety of the
licensing objectives and issues that were faced in a night-time economy in an entirely
appropriate, transparent, proactive manner. This premises needed a severe reprimand,
and this review had caused them to reflect. The review itself, the service of the
paperwork, had promoted the licensing objectives. The panel were not there to punish,
they were there to find the best means of promoting the licensing objective and that was
the appropriate approach.

Sgt Daniel Parry explained that they were not there to review shortcomings. They came
to review what they believed as a police service, was a serious breach of the Licensing
Act. As a police service, this was an opportunity to send a clear message that the level
of breach would not be tolerated, to give reassurance and safeguarding for their
communities and especially the most vulnerable victims of crime. There were also
alleged perpetrators, so it was the full demographic of the public. From the police point
of view, there had been a total disregard for the Criminal Justice System and the
Licensing Act and the cherry picking almost of how CCTV was provided. As a police
service, they had attempted to engage with the subjects but they had failed to repay on
numerous occasions. Police officers from all over the local community, from response
officers, PCOSs, officers and Detectives of the Criminal Investigation Department and
then the Licensing Team as a whole, when looked at in totality, they demonstrated the
subject’s propensity for breaching the Licensing Act.

The Licensing Officer, SWP stated that as in the evidence submitted, representing SWP
it would be remiss not to bring this review before the panel to request revocation of the
premises licence for Eden, 33 Market Street, Bridgend.

SWP believed it was proportionate and just to request the revocation of the premises
licence for Eden, however, they were mindful if the panel did not feel it was appropriate
then SWP requested that the hours of trading were reduced to midnight. As in the
additional supporting documentation ASD 15, 32 of 36 relevant incidents linked to Eden
since the start of 2023 had taken place after midnight.

The Licensing Officer, SWP explained that the Premises Licence Holders, Mr and Mrs
Rasul had a duty to uphold all four licence objectives and to abide by the conditions of
the licence for Eden. It was clear from the evidence provided that Mr and Mrs Rasul
were not fulfilling their duties as licence holders. These breaches were not the first
instances of breaches by the licence holders. Mr and Mrs Rasul had received a number
of emails requesting they comply with their CCTV conditions and had also received a
warning letter, yet they were reluctant to assist SWP with investigations, including when
they had reported incidents and were themselves potentially victims of crime. In a period
of less than two months (8th May to 1st July 2023), there had been three separate
occasions where there had been a significant failure in providing CCTV footage when
requested. The premises licence already had such a strong and robust CCTV condition
so it was impossible to add anything further that would ensure Mr and Mrs Rasul
provided CCTV. The failure to provide CCTV was a significant and worrying breach of
the Premises licence. This failure had shown a complete and utter disregard to the
prevention and detection of crime and the Criminal Justice System in its entirety. Not
only this but it also impacted the time wasted by officers trying to obtain CCTV to
investigate reports. This had a significant cost implication on the public purse and further
led officers to being unable to utilise their precious resources on other matters. As

Page 11



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2023

previously mentioned South Wales Police believed it was proportionate and just that the
premises licence for Eden, 33 Market Street, Bridgend was revoked.

Mr Phipps replied that in terms of the first officer's comments, this was not a criminal
inquiry. In terms of the Licensing Officer SWP comments, this had been brought
because of the failure to produce CCTV in a timely fashion. He entirely accepted the
point that it was time for this premises licence to be reviewed but the suggestion of
revocation was not a proportionate dispensation based on the evidence in front of them.
She made reference in her closing remarks to a complete disregard for the licensing
objectives. A haphazard and inconsistent delivery of the CCTV was not a complete
disregard. If every single point against the Licensees was looked at, it was very
disappointing but not a complete disregard. ASD15 showed that they detained and
caused to be arrested someone recently and that could not fairly be said to be a
complete disregard.

The Licensing Officer SWP had said that if the panel were not minded to support
revocation, they would ask for the hours to be cut back to midnight, which was a new
request. If they looked at the incident profile, most of the incidents occurred after 12.
That was because most customers were in the premises after 12 as it was a nightclub.
Pubs had longer hours under licensing and generally lots of pubs had a midnight finish.
The premises were busy from midnight so a midnight finish would leave them operating
10 till midnight on Fridays and Saturdays, 2 hours on each night. The commercial reality
of that was completely unsustainable, so it was the equivalent of revocation. The officers
had not given any evidence or analysis of any significance, bar the schedule of summary
incidents that did not refer to the premises. The officer had told them that they may be
contaminated by incidents at other premises or references to Eden because it was the
manner in which people referred to that part of town. Midnight would finish them and that
was not a fair way to dispose of this matter. The first 3 incidents on ASD15 referred to
Eden staff capturing people for drugs and calling the police after 3 am. They were doing
everything that was asked of them in the Pub Watch meetings and to help deter drugs
and that should not be the basis on which they should be cutting back the hours on this
premises. Reviews were not intended to be used to drive a wedge between the
responsible authorities and the licensees and that was exactly what this would do. The
suggestion was that the hours should be cut back based on some analysis in the closing
remark on ASD15, served at 3pm yesterday afternoon. He asked the panel to be very
cautious of relying on that material to any great extent.

DECISION NOTICE

The Licensing Sub-Committee held a hearing on the 5th of October 2023 to consider
this application made by the Police. The hearing was attended by Officers Fiona

Colwill, Sgt Daniel Parry and Sgt Myfanwy Beaumont, Mr Mathew Phipps Solicitor on
behalf of Mr and Mrs Rasul, and the premises licence holders and Mr and Mrs Rasul.

MATERIAL BEFORE THE SUB-COMMITTEE

At the outset of the hearing, the Sub-Committee had before it a report from the Council’s
Licensing Officer; review application form and supporting evidence from the Police,
supporting evidence from the Licence holders. The Sub-Committee was also provided
with a copy of the licence under review, and of the statutory Section 182 Guidance.

The Police Case

The Police informed the Committee that there were persistent breaches of the Licensing

conditions in relation to CCTV at the premises. They stated that there was a potential
serious sexual assault at the premises with the male currently being on bail. The CCTV

Page 12



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2023

was first requested on the 4th of July 2023 and was finally provided on the 28th of July
2023. The Licence holders took 4 weeks after the first request to produce the images
and the quality was poor. The Police had requested the images on a numerous occasion
before it was eventually provided. On the 4th of July 2023 the Police contacted the
manager of Eden who informed them that they were not open during the week, and he
would copy the footage onto a memory stick and bring to the Police station. By the 12th
of July 2023 the footage had not been received by the Police and a second email was
sent requesting the footage. The officer tried ringing on the mobile number provided but
there was no answer, and the premises were closed during the week. The footage was
further requested on the 15th of July and on the 20th of July and the Police tried to
contact the Licence Holders on the mobile number several times, but they could not get
an answer and there was no answering facility available. The Police officer received an
email on the 24th of July and was advised that Mr Rasul had been away on holiday.

On 25th July the Officer spoke to Mr Rasul and asked why the CCTV footage had not
been provided and was advised by Mr Rasul that he was expecting an officer to be at
the club on Saturday 27th July. The officer informed Mr Rasul that the delay was
unacceptable and that he was once again frustrating the Police investigation which was
having a detrimental impact on the persons involved in the case.

Mr Rasul advised the Police that he would send the CCTV via NICE on that day. On that
day a NICE link was sent to Mr Rasul. The officer who sent the link then telephoned Mr
Rasul and advised him that the link had been sent, however Mr Rasul informed the
officer that he did not know what footage he had to send. The officer then clarified with
the officer in charge, the footage required, and an email was sent to Mr Rasul informing
him. They also tried to contact Mr Rasul by telephone but could not get an answer. On
the 26th of July the officer tried to telephone Mr Rasul but could not get a response and
as a result the officer emailed Mr Rasul pointing out his responsibility to provide the
information. On the 28th of July 2023 the Police received the CCTV footage on a USB
stick and stated that the continual delay in providing the footage has had a detrimental
effect on those involved in the investigation.

The Police also informed the Committee that they were investigating an incident of
harassment and sexual touching, and the footage from this incident was finally received
on the 3rd of July 2023. The initial request was sent on the 27th of May 2023.

However, the footage received was not the correct footage which had been requested.
The footage received was from one camera angle and was approximately 2 minutes
long and the request made by the Police was for all cameras from the time 0200 hours
to 0400 hours. The footage provided was poor quality. The Officer spoke to Mrs Rasul
who informed the Police that they had no prior knowledge of any of these men and had
never seen them in Eden before. They also claimed they might be hospital staff or
people on placement due to them not being regular customers. Mrs Rasul stated that
when she viewed CCTV that she did not recognise them and there was not much of the
incident caught on camera. The Police requested copies of the footage and on the 28th
May the officer again spoke to Mrs Rasul who confirmed that she would send the
footage via NICE link. On 1st June the matter was reviewed by an Inspector who stated
that the officers needed to engage with the Licence holder today and escalate if the
CCTV is not forthcoming. On the 1st of June no footage had been received and an
email was sent to Mrs Rasul and on that date an officer spoke with Mr Rasul on his
mobile number who requested that a NICE link be sent to Mrs Rasul via email and the
footage would be sent on that day. The officer expressed to Mr Rasul the importance of
receiving the footage and if there were any issues, he should contact the Police as soon
as possible owing to the time that already elapsed. The officer asked for all the footage
from the premises to maximise the opportunity to identify all the individuals involved in
this matter. A new link was sent on the 1st of June which would expire on the 7th of
June. On the 3rd of June footage was sent from one camera, which was not acceptable
as the Police had requested footage from all camera angles and the footage provided
was not in accordance with the times requested. The footage was of poor quality and

Page 13



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2023

individuals could not be identified from the footage. To date the identity of the males,
remain unknown.

An incident of criminal damage was reported by Mr Rasul on the 8th of May. A male has
tried to smash the front window at the premises and was being detained by door staff,
Police attended the premises and arrested the suspect who was subsequently released
on bail pending further enquires. On the 13th of June 2023, two months after the
incident officers were contacted by Mr and Mrs Rasul’s son and informed that they were
not sure whether they wanted to pursue the complaint and needed a few days to discuss
the issue. The alleged perpetrator is still on bail at this point and there had been
numerous attempts to contact the witness in this case without success and this witness
was now employed by Mr and Mrs Rasul. At this stage there is nothing linking the
defendant to the offence and the CCTV footage and witness statement was required to
progress the case and a further link was sent to Mr Rasul to provide the footage. During
this period officers tried on numerous occasions to contact Mr Rasul both by telephone,
email and attending at the premises. On the 9th of July officers tried to contact Mrs
Rasul without success. On the 18th of July an officer texted Mrs Rasul and tried ringing
her but could not get a response. On the 28th of July as officers did not have any
evidence against the defendant, they could not pursue the matter any further. It also
appears that the wrong person was detained for the alleged offence because the person
described at the time was wearing Jeans and the person detained was wearing shorts.
The Police informed the Committee that the failure to provide CCTV is a significant
breach of the premises licence. The Licence holders have shown a complete disregard
to the prevention and detection of crime and the criminal justice system in its entirety.
This also impacts the time wasted by officers trying to obtain CCTV to further an
investigation and has significant cost implication and cost to the public purse and further
leads to officers unable to utilise their precious resources on other matters. It is of
serious note that these breaches are not the first instances of breaches by the Licence
holders and Mr and Mrs Rasul have received a number of emails requesting they
comply with CCTV conditions and have also received a warning letter from the Inspector
on the 16th of February 2023, but it seems that they are reluctant to assist South Wales
Police with investigations including incidents reported against them. The premises
licence already has a strong and robust CCTV condition so it is impossible to add
anything further that will ensure that Mr and Mrs Rasul provide CCTV.

The Police informed the Committee of a case of criminal damages, a complaint received
from the premises on 27th December 2022 of criminal damage and racial abuse. When
the Police attended the premises the subject of the complaint stated that she had picked
up a plastic stick which was being used as decoration which was already broken, and
she put the stick down. The subject stated that she was then shouted at by the victim
Mrs Rasul who then grabbed her top and pulled it and reacted by pushing Mrs Rasul
away. The victim Mrs Rasul informed the Police that the subject had broken the stick
and when challenged hit Mrs Rasul around the head with it. Due to the number of
persons at the premises it was not practical to take statements or look at CCTV at the
premises at the time of the incident. The subject advised the Police that she had been
accused of breaking a Christmas ornament by the owner’s daughter who then called Mrs
Rasul who was standing behind the bar shouting at her that she had to pay for the
damage. The subject stated that she demanded that they check the CCTV, she then
proceeded to try and leave the premises and Mrs Rasul grabbed her and tried to pull her
over the bar exposing her breasts. The subject stated that she tried to stop this
happening and she hit Mrs Rasul once and was then restrained by the bouncer and was
unable to move while Mrs Rasul and her daughter tried to come at her over the bar. She
was trying to leave the premises when the Police arrived, and she then left. On the 2nd
of January 2023 officers tried contacting Mr and Mrs Rasul without success. The officer
reported that on the 6th of January 2023 he had spoken to Mr Rasul who informed him
that the CCTV has been available since Saturday and is happy for officers to attend that
evening to collect. The officer advised Mr Rasul that he would attend at the premises
7pm to collect the same. On the 7th of January the officer sent a link via NICE to Mr

Page 14



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2023

Rasul to send the footage and was advised by Mr Rasul that it would be sent ASAP. On
the 8th of January the officer spoke to Mr Rasul as he had not received the footage and
was advised by Mr Rasul that he would attempt to put the same onto a USB stick.
However, nothing was received, and an officer advised that he had attended the
premises on the 6th of January and was advised by Mr Rasul that the CCTV had already
been collected. Following this several visits were made to the premises, but different
excuses were made each time as to why the CCTV could not be collected and there
were also emails to the licence holder requesting the footage.

By the 17th of February 2023 the footage had still not been provided and the Police
decided to send a warning letter to Mr and Mrs Rasul about complying with the licensing
conditions.

On the 17th of April 2023 the hate crime officers tried to speak to Mrs Rasul, but Mr
Rasul answered her telephone and advised that she had business commitments and
would not be available for a few days. The CCTV was then provided which showed Mrs
Rasul pulling at the subject’s top causing the victim to use necessary and justifiable
force to stop her breasts being exposed. The CCTV backed the subject’s version of
event and was not a hate crime and no further action would be taken.

This is another example of breach of the condition of the licence in relation to CCTV
within a reasonable time and putting barriers in the way of the investigation again
wasting police time and resources.

The Police further advised the Committee that there was a complaint of assault by a
victim who was punched to the nose at Eden and advised Police that the premises
would have CCTV of the incident. The Police started requesting the footage on the 13th
of March. The footage had not been received by the 31st of March and on that date, Mr
Rasul promised to provide the footage the following day by dropping the same into the
Police Station. On the 5th of April the Police had still not received the footage and
contacted Mr Rasul who advised that he had dropped the footage at the front desk of the
police station, however there was no record of any CCTV being handed in. CCTV was
then received which was not sufficient to ascertain whether an offence had been
committed and further footage was requested. Mrs Rasul informed the Police that she
would drop off the footage once her USB sticks had been returned. The officer then
gave Mrs Rasul 3 new USB sticks to use to download footage. Several attempts were
made to obtain the footage and eventually on the 24th of August footage was received
but unfortunately it was for the wrong date. With no CCTV of the incident the Police
could not progress the complaint any further and could not proceed with the case.

It was clarified during the course of the hearing that ASD 15 is not accurate in relation to
events registered against Eden as the Licensing Officer confirmed that if there are
occurrences at no 35 then will be registered against Eden.

The Police asked the Sub-Committee to revoke the Licence or bring the hours down to
midnight for closing.

The Premises Licence holder’s case

Mr and Mrs Rasul have had the premises since 2015 which is a well-known night club
venue in Bridgend, they also have a neighbouring premises, Bar 35 which is in
immediate proximity to Eden. They employ 4 door staff and Mr Rasul is always at the
premises and Mrs Rasul is regularly at the premises. The premises usually open from
10pm Fridays, Saturdays and Bank holiday Sunday’s trading as per the hours in the
Licence. Generally, customers arrive at the premises after midnight.

Mr Phipps advised the Committee that there were no other representations from any
other responsible authority which is an important point in this review. The case involves
failure to provide CCTV upon request and officers have given evidence about several
times when the licence holders have not delivered in any way to the standard expected.
Mr Phipps confirmed that the premises licence holders needed to improve. In most of
the cases it was a failure to provide CCTV as quickly as it should have been provided

Page 15



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2023

and not a failure to provide it at all. The application by the Police relates to 3 incidents of
concern which relate to criminal damage, the conduct of Asian males in the premises
and a sexual assault away from the premises.

The first incident on the 1st of July set out at page 10 of the report CCTV was slow to be
provided. Officers attended the premises on 21st July viewed the CCTV and it was
understood that they were going to report back the contents of the same. The CCTV
provision is not that straight forward and as can be seen from the paperwork, Mr and
Mrs Rasul have mentioned the NICE links falling off. The links last a couple of days and
must be provided in that window. It is accepted that it can be extended by request. The
premises are closed Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday so any request made
during those days cannot be construed as Mr and Mrs Rasul being awkward about
providing CCTV.

There is then a second incident relating to concern around Asian males in attendance
which was raised by Mr and Mrs Rasul at the Pub watch meeting on the 10th May as
there were concerns about their conduct not criminal activity. Mrs Rasul also reported
that the CCTV had been viewed but there was little to report from that. CCTV was
uploaded but later deemed insufficient and this was a matter that Mr and Mrs Rasul had
raised in good faith with the officers, it is right that it was not turned around, but they had
viewed it and taken the view that there was not much in it. Mr and Mrs Rasul did not
believe that it was the investigation of a crime as they had raised the issue.

The third incident which is criminal damage in which Mr and Mrs Rasul are the victims
and CCTV was provided late despite a number of requests. On this occasion the Police
were called, and officers did not use their body cameras and the individual was clearly
identified as the perpetrator. Mr and Mrs Rasul thought that this was sufficient and that
the person had accepted what he had done.

The fact that Mr and Mrs Rasul did not want to pursue the matter was a decision for
them, but it is accepted that they could have told the Police earlier. This is a matter
which was reported by Mr and Mrs Rasul and is how being used in the application for
revocation of the licence. It seems extraordinary that this event could be part of the
application for revocation particularly when CCTV has been provided but has been late.
The application mentions the refusal of two temporary event notices which do not relate
to these premises but relate to the other premises no 35.

Mr and Mrs Rasul did receive the warning letter and they recognise that they have not
been getting this right, however the CCTV was provided, and Mr and Mrs Rasul believe
that it was provided before the warning letter was signed off.

There has been a failure to attend pub watch but since February that has been attended
to. There was also a failure to keep up to date with persons on the banned list which is
accepted by Mr and Mrs Rasul however the system has changed, and this information
must be accessed by downloading an APP and Mr and Mrs Rasul are not good with IT.
However, since the warning letter this has now improved and been rectified.

The application sets out the CCTV conditions which state that the images have to be
downloaded to disc there is no mention of the NICE protocol in that condition, it doesn’t
mean that Mr and Mrs Rasul shouldn’t be doing it that way but it does not breach the
condition, and in relation to the remaining conditions there is nothing in the evidence to
suggest any of those conditions are being breached or undermined. On the 22nd of
June 2023 two licencing officers visited the premises and asked for some notices to be
replaced but apart from that the premises were given a clean bill of health.

There have been several occasions when CCTV has been requested and delivered in a
timely manner and several examples were given so it is not that the licence holders are
bereft of an ability to deliver. It is accepted that the review by the Police was merited as
the Licence holders had warnings, and they failed to remedy the situation, so review is
the next step. The review has made Mr and Mrs Rasul reflect on their ability to deliver
and as a result they have made improvements namely: -

1. The CCTV system has been serviced and overhauled and there are 19
cameras.

Page 16



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2023

2. Training for members of the team to download the images.
3. USB training
4. Additional keys for members of staff to access the premises.

The additional information served by the Police strays into new areas which cannot be
fairly said were incorporated into the application. Itis a list of incidents at the premises
during 2023, they are a summary document produced by police without any CAD or
Niche reports only 7 incidents relate to Eden and mention Eden and can’t confirm
whether they are actually about these premises. There are several incidents where the
licence holders have acted responsibility by catching persons in the premises with drugs
and engaging the police.

The Licence holders are engaging throughout the period, and it cannot be said that the
premises are at the end of the road. It is submitted that during the review period the
premises would have been monitored throughout, it is often the case applicants continue
to fail during this period that is not the case for these premises. There is nothing to
suggest that the premises are not in good order.

The national guidance and Licensing policy that state cooperation at local level should
be encouraged and review should not be used to undermine. The use of ASD 15
suggesting that the premises are not in good order is unfair and improper because of the
reference to revocation today. Revocation has not been mentioned anywhere in the
papers and it first mentioned today. Revocation means that there is nothing in the
premises that can be rectified which means closure of the business and loss of jobs and
revenue. Reviews are not about punishment they must be reasonable and what is
being requested here is a punishment for previous failings and the review is about being
able to meet the licensing objectives. Licences are revoked for egregious failings not
late or modest delivery of CCTV.

Finding of the Sub-Committee

The Sub-Committee have disregarded the entries in documents ASD 15 as the Police
have confirmed that they register everything against Eden, even if the incident occurs at
no 35. Eden and number 35 are separate premises with separate Licences and as
such the Police should keep a proper record of all incidents that occur at each premises
and not lump them all together. The Sub-Committee find that producing evidence in
this way is not acceptable and provides inaccurate information to the Committee and as
such the Committee must disregard it.

The Sub-Committee find that the Licence Holders have not complied with their Licence
condition which relates to CCTV, it is noted that on many occasions that the CCTV is
given in a timely manner but on other occasions the delay is unacceptable. The Police
have had to waste valuable resources in trying to obtain footage which has resulted on
occasion in cases being dropped. This undermines the licensing objectives particularly
the prevention of crime and disorder. The Sub-Committee find that the Licence Holders
attitude towards the Police on the occasions when they are chasing CCTV totally
unacceptable, they appear to treat the matter as an afterthought and not something that
deserves their attention as an urgent matter. The fact that the premises are closed on
the Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday is not an excuse not to comply with
the Licensing conditions, it is their responsibility to ensure that on those days that they or
members of their staff can be contacted, and access given to the premises. The Sub-
Committee have been assured however that this has now been rectified and other
members of staff now hold keys to the premises.

The Sub-Committee also note that there have been warnings in the past and the
situation improves but quickly deteriorates. The Licensing Sub-Committee have noted
that there have now been other measures in place to rectify the matter namely there has
been some training for the family on downloading the CCTV.

Determination

Page 17



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2023

The Sub-Committee must in its decision-making promote the statutory licensing
objectives and in particular, the prevention of crime and disorder and public safety. The
Sub-Committee have taken into consideration the Licensing Act 2003, the statutory
guidance issued under the Act and the Council’s statement of Licensing Policy.

The Sub-Committee have determined that Licence holders have breached their licensing
conditions which relates to CCTV which has undermined the prevention of crime and
disorder and public safety.

The Sub-Committee have heard that Mr and Mrs Rasul have accepted that their
behaviour has fallen short of what is expected from them as Licence holders but have
put in place several matters to rectify the situation such as overhauling the cameras and
putting in place training the family on downloading the images. However, the Sub-
Committee have determined that this does not go far enough to ensure compliance with
the licensing condition and the licensing objectives.

The Sub-Committee have determined that every member of staff at the premises must
be trained on downloading the CCTV images, in order that if Police attend the premises
and require the footage then every member of staff should be able to produce them on
demand. The premise licence holder must produce a log that contains the names of all
the members of staff who have been trained and this must be produced to the Licensing
Department of the Council and the Licensing department of the Police before the 14-day
period has elapsed.

The Sub-Committee have determined that they will suspend the Licence for a period of
14 days to ensure that during that period all members of staff are trained on
downloading the images and the log of the training and the names of staff who have
been trained are produced to the Police and the Licensing Department of the Council.
Also, during this period, the Licence holders must produce the names of every member
of staff who holds keys to the premises and produce that list to the Police and the
Licensing Department of the Council.

The Sub-Committee have also determined that the CCTV condition on the Licence
requires amendment to ensure that the licensing objectives are met, and the condition is
amended as follows: -

CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system capable of providing pictures
of evidential quality and in particular facial recognition. Cameras will encompass all
access to and exits from the premises including fire exits and all areas, with the
exception of the toilets to which public have access. The equipment will be maintained
in good working order. The System will continually record whilst the premises is open
for licensable activities and during all times when customers remain at the premises.
Recordings will be timed and kept in date for a period of 28 days and will be handed to a
Police officer within 72 hours upon lawful demand. The designated premises supervisor
will ensure that at all times all members of staff on duty must be trained in the use of the
CCTV equipment and be able to produce recordings in a recordable format either to
USB or to disc or via the NICE system used by South Wales Police, upon lawful demand
by a Police officer or Local Authority officer. The Premises will also maintain a log
containing the names of the members of staff who have been trained on downloading
the CCTV system together with the date the staff were trained. All new members of staff
must be trained within 21 days of commencing employment at the premises. The
recording equipment will be kept in a secure environment under the control of the DPS
or another responsible named individual. An operational daily log will be maintained
indicating that the system has been checked and is compliant. In the event of any
failings of the system actions taken to rectify such failings will be recorded. If there is a
technical failure of the CCTV equipment the DPS will report such a failure to the Police.

The meeting closed at 14:45

Page 18



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - WEDNESDAY, 3 JANUARY 2024

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) HELD REMOTELY - VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS ON WEDNESDAY, 3

JANUARY 2024 AT 10:00

6T abed

MJ Kearn

Officers:

Julie Ellams
Kirsty Evans
Andrea Lee
Oscar Roberts
Yvonne Witchell

Declarations of Interest

None

Present Virtually

Councillor M Lewis — Chairperson

J Llewellyn-Hopkins

Democratic Services Officer - Committees

Senior Licensing Officer

Senior Lawyer

Business Administrative Apprentice - Democratic Services
Team Manager Licensing

15. Licensing Act 2003: Section 104 Temporary Event Notice Objection to
Notice by South Wales Police for Bar 35

Decision Made

The Team Manager Licensing presented a report asking Members to consider and determine Objection
Notices submitted by South Wales Police in response to 3 Temporary Event Notices served on the
Licensing Authority.

Decision Notice

The Licensing Sub-Committee held a hearing on the 3 January 2024 to consider this application made by
the Applicant. The hearing was attended by an Officer from South Wales Police namely Fiona Colwill, Mr




0z abed

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - WEDNESDAY, 3 JANUARY 2024

Ewen Macgregor Solicitor on behalf of Mr Rasul, and the premises licence holder Mr Rasul.

Material Before the Sub-Committee

At the outset of the hearing, the Sub-Committee had before it a report from the Council’s Licensing Officer;
the objection notice from the Police, additional information from the Police namely CCTV footage and 3
word documents.

Representations made by the Applicant.

There are three applications for Temporary event notices and they're all exactly the same.

Mr MacGregor informed the Committee that in essence, the applications covered the last three weekends
of January to enable the premises to trade for an additional hour on Friday night and Saturday nights for
the last three weekends. The applicants are applying for a very brief extension of hours, an additional hour
on the Friday nights and Saturday nights on those three weekends.

There was a notice that was submitted for New Year's Eve, but following discussions with officers, that
application was withdrawn because it was established that the existing premises licence for Bar 35
authorised the premises to stay open until the hours that they had requested.

Mr MacGregor referred to the review hearing of the premise licence for Eden and informed the members
that there was a review on the 5" October 2023. For the purpose of these applications, it was confirmed
that so far as these three Temporary Event Notices are concerned Eden would be closed for refurbishment
during these events.

It was explained that the officer made a comment about attaching conditions to the Temporary Event
Notices, and it was confirmed that Bar 35 will operate in line with their licence conditions and at last entry
to the premises will be at 2:00 in the morning. Bar 35 will provide door security and at least 4 door security
will be provided on Friday night and at least six door security will be provided on Saturday night and the
provision of door security will of course be kept under review for the continuation of the three Temporary
Event Notices.

The Sub-Committee were informed that previous Temporary Event Notices have been granted for these
premises, they go back to 2022, but for the same hours that they were seeking today and there were no
issues in relation to the operation of those Temporary Event Notices and indeed, there's no evidence
produced by the police to show that previous Temporary Event Notice granted to these premises have
undermined the licensing objective




T¢ abed

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - WEDNESDAY, 3 JANUARY 2024

Insofar as the police counter notice is concerned, the applicant has been provided with some papers, some
CCTV and then very late in the day yesterday afternoon at about 4:30pm they had some additional
allegations.

Mr MacGregor advised that a document headed “Further 5 Allegations of Assault” had been received in
relation to the CCTV footage that relates to an incident on the 15" October 2023, and it relates to an
incident outside Eden and to be absolutely clear Eden and Bar 35 have separate premises licences. They
have separate licence holders, and they have separate DPS so they are two distinct premises and at the
time of the incident on the 15" October Bar 35 was closed, but for the sake of the record in so far as it's
relevant to this application, those door staff that you may have seen on the CCTV, they have been
suspended.

The five further allegations, save for the allegation in relation to the incident on the 1% January at New
Year's Eve going into the 1% January, Bar 35 was closed. So, none of those incidents relate to operations
at Bar 35. And in fact, if you do look through and I'm sure you will as an experienced Committee, look
through the reports that's been provided to the police and Bar 35 is not referenced at all in in those papers
and there is continual reference to Eden in Bridgend.

And if you look at the final incident, the assault, the alleged assault on the 1% January at 3:24, officers
spoke to door staff at Eden and then over the page in relation to an alleged incident of spiking. There is
reference again to Eden Nightclub and all of these occurred, as | say at a time when Bar 35 was closed
and these are the premises for which the application has been made and | would invite you to disregard
the evidence that has been provided by the police that in relation to these applications for Temporary
Event Notices, Temporary Event Notice scheme of course is meant to be a light touch scheme, but we've
already committed to saying that Eden will be closed, that we will adopt the conditions on the Bar 35
license and that door security will be provided.

What the police have sought to do, here is to conflate the two premises.

Eden and Bar 35 are separate premises. They have separate licence holders and separate DPS's, and this
is precisely the same thing that they sought to do at the review, and indeed were criticised by the
Committee at the review hearing for the approach that they adopted at that time.

Mr MacGregor invited the Sub-Committee to take exactly the same approach today as the Committee took
back on the 5" October and then extracted from the Minutes of the meeting on the 5" October, when the
review of Eden and not Bar 35 was brought and the findings of the Sub-Committee.




2c abed

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - WEDNESDAY, 3 JANUARY 2024

Mr MacGregor quoted from the minutes of that meeting: -

“Eden and Bar 35 are separate premises with separate licences and as such the police should keep a
proper record of all incidents that occur at each premises and not lump them all together.

The Sub-Committee find that producing evidence in this way is not acceptable, provides inaccurate
information, and as such the Committee must disregard it.”

Mr MacGregor invited the Sub-Committee to adopt the same approach in relation to this application as
their colleagues adopted on the application for the review of Eden, back in October.

Mr MacGregor added that the police have said that it is impossible to consider what incidents are
happening in which premises and if that is right then it would have been perfectly open to the police to
have reviewed the licenses for both Eden and Bar 35 back in in October but they chose only to review the
license in relation to Eden and not Bar 35 presumably because they had no evidence to support a review
for Bar 35. The second point is that they say it's impossible to consider which is which and that's simply not
right because when you look at the report the second report that came through with the five further
allegations, firstly they happened save for the final incident which I've dealt with already which happened
on New Year's Eve is that they all happened at the time when Bar 35 was closed. It did not trade on any of
the evenings, but the police say these incidents happened and insofar as the incident that happened when
Bar 35 was trading it's clear from the police reports that the incident took place within Eden and not outside
but within Eden.

Mr MacGregor added that there is nothing that has been presented that can point the finger at the way that
Bar 35 and has operated insofar as the issue of separate door staff and basically the door staff are not just
controlling the access but also what goes on within the premises. Whilst the premises share a common
entrance, the premises themselves have their own security and they have separate security and so you
can, again, you cannot simply conflate the two premises and try and say, well, what is good for Eden is
good for Bar 35 and that is simply not fair or right.

The Representations made by the Police

The number one priority for South Wales Police is to reduce and prevent crime and disorder and antisocial
behaviour to keep people safe in their homes and communities.

South Wales Police have concerns regarding the number of crime and disorder, public safety and public
nuisance calls within Bridgend town centre, which are linked to the late-night economy.

The Police informed the Sub-Committee that Eden and Bar 35 have 2 separate Licences, Mrs Rasul holds




¢z abed

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - WEDNESDAY, 3 JANUARY 2024

the Licence for Eden and Mr Rasul holds the Licence for Bar 35. However, due to the layout at the front of
the premises, it is impossible to differentiate what incidents occur in Eden and which occur in Bar 35.
Therefore, all incidents are logged under Eden 33 Market St. The smoking area to the front of the premises
shares a communal entrance which is directly in front of the main doors into Eden with a door to Bar 35
being located to the right, concealed by the covered barriers. This is evidenced in the stills and CCTV
footage provided to the committee. The yellow arrow indicates the entrance to both premises, the entrance
being immediately in front of Eden, which is indicated by the green arrow. The entrance to Bar 35 is
indicated by the red Arrow, with the entrance being obscured by the fencing and its advertising banners.

Since the review application hearing for Eden on the 5" October 2023 and the 22" December 2023, on the
South Wales Police Nice system, there are a further 13 occurrences linked to the premises.

Three did not involve the premises, one was theft, one hate crime, three drugs and five assaults. Of the 10
involving the premises, seven were reported after 0230 hours. Concerningly on the 15th of October 2023
at 02:55 hours, CCTV reported door staff are battering a male. This incident occurred to the entrance into
the smoking area and you could not differentiate which premises the door staff were acting for. CCTV
footage which has been provided to members prior to this hearing. Within the footage, 2 assaults are
witnessed. Both members of door staff were interviewed under caution and both admitted assault on the
male. On the 17th of November 2023, both were suspended by the security Industry Authority SIA.
Footage shows two separate incidents involving one individual male.

Incident 2 An altercation can be seen between DS2 and the male within the entrance to Eden/Bar 35. This
is into the smoking area, which covers both premises. DS2 and DS1 could be seen to push the male
across the road, striking him numerous times whilst the male is on the floor. DS1 can be seen to stamp on
the male and kick the male whilst on the floor DS2 can be seen to stamp on the male and kick the male to
the back of the head. DS4 security from another premises assisted to break up the altercation. On the 11™"
November 2023 DS1 and DS2 voluntary attended Bridewell police station> DS1 and DS2 were separately
interviewed under caution. Both admitted to assaulting the male on Sunday the 15" October 2023, whilst
working as door supervisors for Eden and Bar 35 Market St, Bridgend. Since the 28™ July 2023, three
members of Eden and Bar 44 have been suspended by the SIA. Within the footage provided, patrons
could be clearly seen walking back and forth to each premises confirming the premises are run as one and
that it is impossible for South Wales Police officers to determine which premises an incident has occurred.

This shows both 35 was trading at the time and disputes Mr Macgregor's comment that Bar 35 was not
trading at that time.

Where we appreciate Bar 35 does not have door staff conditions as the two premises had run as one SIA




vz abed

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - WEDNESDAY, 3 JANUARY 2024

are employed at both 33 and 35 and deal with patrons that are attending both premises. Local authorities
CCTV operators alerted officers to a male that been ejected from another premises after making racist
comments. CCTV operators alleged that Mr Rasul was argumentative and unprofessional towards
operators and allowed the male access as he knew him.

Between the 24" December 2023 and the 1 January 2024, a further 5 allegations of assault have been
received.

Occurrence numbers 435965 and 436005 racially and religiously aggravated common assault, reports of a
disturbance. This was on the 24" December and the investigation is ongoing. The circumstances are 2
males have tried to assault Mr Rasul. Assailant also assaulted a female member of staff. Officers have
attended and spoken with the owner. Mr Rasul alleged that the male had called him a derogatory name
and then proceeded to assault him by grabbing him by the clothing and punching him to the face. Officers
located the male a short distance away and arrested him for the above offence. Officers have then
returned to conduct further inquiries and in doing so it become apparent the male has not punched Mr
Rasul but has grabbed him by the clothing whilst using racially offensive language. It transpired the male
who was with the detained person had also assaulted the female bar member of staff by punching her to
the face whilst he was trying to assault Mr Rasul.

Incident number 438475 assault, last night there was an argument with my friend and a female. The
female has slapped me to the face and her friend has approached me and punched me to the face. | have
a cut to my mouth. It happened in Eden in the room up the stairs, | believe there is CCTV.

Occurrence number the 2400000255, assault with injury, offenders had dispersed by the time Police
arrived, Officers spoke with door men who stated a fight had broken out in Eden but all those involved
were removed from the premises. One of the door men had been assaulted while trying to stop the fight
and had been head butted to the nose but declined to press charges.

There was a report that a female had her drink spiked while out in Bridgend Town Centre and consumed
alcohol in a few premises prior to attending Eden/Bar 44 there is no evidence that her drink was spiked at
Eden but recalls being thrown out of Eden by Door Staff. The female was ejected by staff with no concerns
as to her safety.

Finding of the Sub-Committee

Findings of the Sub- Committee




Gz abed

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - WEDNESDAY, 3 JANUARY 2024

For the sake of clarification, it is confirmed that the 3 members sitting today, also sat on the review hearing
for the premises known as Eden.

The Applicant has referred to the Sub-Committee decision in the Eden review. The Police called for a
review of the premises licence and on the list of occurrences it was unclear whether the occurrence
happened at Eden or Bar 35. The applicant specifically stated during that hearing that several of the
occurrences took place at Bar 35 and not Eden, and as the review specifically related to Eden premises,
the occurrences were not taken into consideration. However, that decision can clearly be distinguished in
this case as this relates to 3 Temporary Events that will be run by Mr Rasul and he is involved in a number
of occurrences that take place in Eden and although the premises have two separate licences it is clear
that Mr Rasul actively takes part in the management and running of the Eden Bar.

Mr Rasul informed the Sub-Committee that there are separate door staff for Eden and Bar 35 and it may
well be the case that he employed them with the intention of working for a specific premise, however from
the video evidence the Door Staff are situated at the entrance to the smoking area which makes it
impossible to determine for which premises they are working. Also, in I[UC the Door Staff confirmed that
they were working for both premises.

The Sub-Committee find that on the balance of probabilities that the door staff do work for both premises
during the times that they are open together as when an incident occurs, they would not stick to distinct
roles based on premises but would act together to deal with an incident that occurs.

The Sub-Committee also find on the balance of probabilities that although there are two separate licences
and that Mr Rasul holds the licence for Bar 35 and Mrs Rasul for Eden, Mr Rasul is heavily involved in the
running of Eden and takes the lead in all the incidents that occur there and is responsible for also running
those premises with Mrs Rasul. He cannot therefore extricate himself from the incidents that happen in the
Eden premises that specifically involve him.

The Sub-Committee find that on the balance of probabilities Mr Rasul does not uphold the licensing
objectives in some of the incidents namely on the incident on the 9" December 2023 when he was advised
by the Council’'s CCTV camera operators that a male had been ejected from another premises and he still
allowed him into Eden and was argumentative to the CCTV operators when they were trying to stop
incidents of disorder in the town centre.

Also, in a further incident at Eden Mr Rasul made a false allegation that someone had punched him in the
face and when checking the CCTV at the premises this allegation was found to be untrue.

The Sub-Committee also found on the balance of probabilities that it is highly likely that if Eden is closed




9z abed

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (A) - WEDNESDAY, 3 JANUARY 2024

during the time of the TENs events that the patrons of Eden would then attend Bar 35 and as such the
incidents that occur at Eden will migrate to Bar 35 which would undermine the Licensing objectives
particularly crime and disorder and public nuisance.

RESOLVED:

The Sub-Committee must in its decision-making promote the statutory licensing
objectives and in particular, the prevention of crime and disorder and public safety.
The Sub-Committee have taken into consideration the Licensing Act 2003, the

statutory guidance issued under the Act and the Council’s statement of Licensing
Policy.

The Sub-Committee have determined to issue a counter notice for all 3 Temporary
Event Notices as they have determined that allowing the events to go ahead will

undermine the licensing objectives particular the Crime and Disorder and public
nuisance.

Date Decision Made

3" January 2024

To observe further debate that took place on the above items, please click this link

The meeting closed at 11:20.



https://youtu.be/ip8L6cNDAyI?si=VGdSjZFVGkBzCkVl

Agenda Item 4

Meeting of: LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE (A)

Date of Meeting: 30 APRIL 2024

Report Title: GRANT OF PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCES
Report Owner / CHIEF OFFICER — LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES,
Corporate Director: HR AND CORPORATE POLICY

Responsible
Officer: KIRSTY EVANS
LICENSING TEAM MANAGER

Policy Framework

and Procedure The report content has no direct effect upon the policy
Rules: framework and procedure rules.
Executive For the Licensing Sub-Committee to consider three
Summary: applications for the grant of private hire vehicle licences for
vehicles which fall outside the Licensing Committee
guidelines

1. Purpose of Report

1.1  The purpose of this report is to ask Members to determine three applications for the
grant of private hire vehicle licences which fall outside of the Licensing Committee’s
age policy guidelines.

2. Background

2.1 Itis the duty of the Local Authority to determine applications made under the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and Town Police Clauses Act
1847. These applications are referred to the Licensing Sub-Committee for
determination because the applications fall outside policy guidelines. The
applications are made under Section 46 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976.

3. Current situation / proposal

3.1 The Council has received applications from Mr Richard Singleton to licence the
following vehicles as a private hire vehicles:

3.1.1 Application 1

Page 27



Make: Mercedes Benz
Model: V 250 AMG Line D Auto MPV
Fuel Type: Diesel

Date of First registration:

20 March 2018

In accordance with the age policy the
vehicle should be:

Five years at first application to licence

Age of vehicle at time of application:

Six years at application (1 year outside

the policy)
Colour: Black
Mileage recorded at last MOT | MOT undertaken 25 July 2023 with
inspection: 135,362 miles at date of test
Registration No: SIL 66
Passengers: 7
Type approval category: M1

Accessible Vehicle:

Not wheelchair accessible

3.1.2 Application 2

Make: Mercedes Benz
Model: S Class
Fuel Type: Diesel

Date of First registration:

8 September 2016

In accordance with the age policy the
vehicle should be:

Five years at first application to licence

Age of vehicle at time of application:

Seven years and six months (2 years
and 6 months outside the policy)

Colour: Silver

Mileage recorded at last MOT | MOT undertaken 29 October 2023 with
inspection: 61,604 miles at date of test
Registration No: BV66 YSB

Passengers: 4

Type approval category: M1

Accessible Vehicle:

Not wheelchair accessible

3.1.3 Application 3

Make: Mercedes Benz
Model: S Class

Fuel Type: Diesel

Date of First registration: 29 April 2017

In accordance with the age policy the
vehicle should be:

Five years at first application to licence

Age of vehicle at time of application:

Six years and eleven months (1 year
and 11 months outside the policy)

Colour: Silver

Mileage recorded at last MOT | MOT undertaken 5 May 2023 with
inspection: 49,670 miles at date of test
Registration No: SA64 HOL

Passengers: 4

Type approval category: M1

Accessible Venhicle:

Not wheelchair accessible

Page 28




3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

The age policy guidelines adopted by the Licensing Committee on 17 November 2020
to take effect from February 2021 are as follows and are published on the Council’s
website:

“‘AGE POLICY GUIDELINES

Vehicles submitted for licensing for the first time must be less than 5 years old from
the date of first registration;

The only exception to the above is that Minibus type vehicles fitted with permanent
automated tail lifts submitted for licensing for the first time must be less than 10 years
old from the date of first registration;

Vehicles aged up to 10 years old at the time of application will be tested twice a year;

Vehicles aged over 10 years old at the time of application will be tested three times
per year;

Fleet Services will issue an MOT Certificate and Declaration of Fitness Form covering
the taxi and private hire vehicle elements which fall outside the MOT process;

Vehicles will be tested in accordance with the Freight Transport Association —
National Inspection Standards for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles.

If you fail to submit an application to renew a vehicle licence in time, provided a
completed application is received within five days of the expiry date the requirement
for a vehicle to be presented to Committee is waived.

Applications for converted or modified vehicles outside the M1 Vehicle Type approval
category must be accompanied by a full-service history and appropriate safety
certification including a Voluntary Individual Vehicle Approval (IVA) Certificate issued
by the Driving and Vehicle Standards Agency (DVSA).

If you are in any doubt about whether a vehicle falls within policy guidelines please
email us for advice before you make a financial commitment.”

As the vehicles fall outside the age policy guidelines by being over 5 years old the
Committee is requested to determine the applications.

The vehicles will be presented to Committee for inspection on the day of the hearing.
Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language)

An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has identified that there would
be no negative impact on those with one or more of the protected characteristics, on

Page 29



5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

socio-economic disadvantage or the use of the Welsh Language. It is therefore not
necessary to carry out a full EIA on this policy or proposal.

Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate
Well-being Objectives

The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this
report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.

Climate Change Implications

There are no climate change implications arising from this report.

Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications

There are no safeguarding and corporate parent implications arising from this report.
Financial Implications

There are no financial implications arising from the report.

Recommendations

Having regard to the report, the Guidelines adopted by the Licensing Committee and

any representations made by Mr. Singleton, the Sub-Committee is requested to
determine applications 1-3 listed above.

Background documents

None.

Page 30



Agenda Item 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Approval of Minutes
	Minutes , 03/01/2024 Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee (A)

	4 Grant Of Private Hire Vehicle Licences
	7 Grant of a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver's Licence

